EXHIBIT “10™

To the Receiver’s Seventh Report to Court
Dated January 14, 2019




Lewis, David

From: Christopher Souster <cmas@riversidelawoffice.ca>

Sent: November 15, 2018 5:47 PM

To: Lewis, David; Fryzuk, Craig; Shellon, Jacqueline

Cc: '‘Mike Terrigno (mike@terrigno.ca)’

Subject: [EXT] Base Receivership

Attachments: Attachment 12018-11-16-000919.pdf; attachment 22018-11-16-001018.pdf; attachment

32018-11-16-001046.pdf

FEES TO DATE OF RECEIVERSHIP ORDER

| spoke with Mr. Terrigno and understand that an agreement was reached respecting the passing of those portions of
the accounts that relate to services provided up to the date of the Receivership Order, pursuant paragraph #32 of that
order, subject to taxation. Please find attached those portions of the accounts that relate to the foregoing time period
and for which you have previously received as exhibit “C” to Mr. Terrigno’s affidavit (which is attached again for you
convenience). The totals for which are as follows:

1. Those portions of the accounts to the date of the Receivership Order = $56,349.00
2. Disbursements incurred to the date of the Receivership = $19,693.41
3. Rick Billington’s account paid by my client = $16,431.18

TOTAL = $92,473.59 (*all funds payable to Riverside Law Office*)

As we have been waiting approximately 3 years for payment of the fees as a first charge against the estate under the
Receivership order, we kindly appreciate payment by end of business day on Monday, November 19, 2018.

REMAINDER OF FEES

| also understand that by the end of the business day, November 21, 2018, the Receiver will review the remainder of the
accounts exhibited to Mr. Terrigno’s affidavit of May 11, 2017, for the purposes of the application to recover fees, and
deliver to us a two column document outlining:

1. the first column setting out those legal fees supported by the Receiver; and
2. the second column identifying those legal fees for which the Receiver does not support.

Sincerely,

CHRISTOPHER M.A. SOUSTER
Barrister & Solicitor

RIVERSIDE LAW OFFICE

4108 Montgomery View NW
Calgary Alberta Canada T3B 0L9

TEL: 1(403) 685 4224 | FAX: 1(403) 685 4225

Please consider the Environment before printing this e-mail




The contents of this message may contain confidential and/or privileged subject matter. If you are not the intended
reciplent then disclosure, copying, distribution and use are prohibited. Please notify Riverside immediately and kindly
delete this email from your systems.
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REF. - 3097

Invoice Number: _INVOICENUM

Easy |8n Corporation
21%10f 8 N.W.
Caar|. AB T2N 1w

REt: Base Finance and Ameold Breilkieulz

This is Exhibit * C/‘ refarred to in the Afidavitof -

= M//‘:Q—f/[?///\
Mnbebmmeh‘:‘s“_

Attention: Mike Temgno

DATE INITIAL | CESCRIPTION HOURS | AMOUNTS
1

@ 19-Aug-15 admn | Comespondence with clent- email fom | 0.40 | $36.00
g @ client, offica direclion with cmas, email lo |
ek8 client, further email from client.

é § ‘E’g 19-Aug-15 admn ta file maintenance, reviaw and filing - CC | 0.10 $900
g 58 3 26-Aug-15 admn to file maintenance and review - CC 0.10 $9.00
EZ8E| [B030A [CMAS |Tocalsandmeelngwincleniie | 500 | 5250000

§ § 15 agency, MIC, ete. To review of

25

documentation provided by MT, lo meeting
with RT, to analysis and opinion lo client,
and to letter to Base Finance re: provision
o of mortigagedocs. -
110 15~ 8ept- | CMAS | To legal research in relation lo agency, 8.00 §4,000.00

15 receivership, injunclive remedies, ex parle
applications, fraud schemes, preservation |
of documents, etc.
15-Sep CMAS | To further meetings and calls with client 5.00 $2,500.00

and other interested parties, to discussion
with vanous counsel and vith RE on !
proper course of action, to preparation of
materials for application o produce docs

50ct-15 CMAS To drait affidavil and application, 1o calls 3.00 $1,500.00
with RB re: ex parie applicalion
“6-7-0ct-15 CMAS | To initial meeting with client to review the | 1.50 $750.00
affidavil, execule affidavit, and background

of situalion. To preparalion of the arder for |
receivership and to call with Richard I
Billington
7-0cl-15 CMAS to client meelings, calls, court allendance | 12.00 $6,000.00
and conversations with counsel and
service of order at Base office and
discussions with Arnold prior lo retaining

Conlinued...
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Date: May 11, 2017

counsel and {o debriafing with client

—

8-0Oct-16

CMAS

To ali calls and emails wilh client, Richard
Billington, Phil Lalonde, re: morigages,
senvice, elc.

200

$1,000.00

8-Oct-15

CMAS

to meeling with client and 1o further calis
with Lalonde, letter to Lelonde and follow
up call to RB

8-Oct-15

admn

‘scanned and emailed Order and Affidavit

for service on counsel; drafled affidavil of
service and arcanged 10 be filed-ce

2.00

$1,000.00

0.50

$45.00

9-0ct-15

CMAS

to meeting wilh clients; email with Phil
Lalonde and lelephone call with Phil
Lalonde and to meeling with clienl and RB
and emails with RB and clienl.

35

$1,750.00

10-Oct-15

CMAS

to review morigageldeeds, emailsicalls
with client, to draft demand lelter and
service of demand letler

3.00

$1,500.00

12-Oct-15

CMAS

lo calis and emails wilh client and
Biflingtan, to meeting with clent and to
review ol dralt order

310

$1,550.00

13-Oct-15

CMAS

To call vith Resch, to call wilh client and to
file organization, review of emails. and tifle
searches.

2.0

$1,050.00

13-0ct-15

CMAS

To meeting with Bob Comltois, drafting of
his affidavit, 1o emails and calls wilh client,
US lawyer, draft letter to US lawyer,
additional calls with chent and call with P,
Lalonde

8.00

$4,000.00

13-0ct-15

CMAS

To calis with Billington, la further emails
with client, to draft and corrections to
Mike's supplemental affidavit, lo
coordination of exhibits, to file
organization, and to copying and prepping
affidavits for filing

5.00

13-0ct-15

CMAS

1o meeling wilh clignt lo execule tha
supplemental affidavil, to inilial draft of
claim, 1o call with RB, and to call with
Pasquale (another investor)

8.00

"$2.500.00

$400000 |

14-0ct-15

CMAS

To discussion with chientin refation 1o BOO
(lack of response and retainer lelter), to
debriefing on calls with Basi and Mitler
Thomson counsel for second opinion on
proposed order, BDO, and plan of acton

3.00

$1,500.00

14-0ct-15

CMAS

To entire organization of file, (o preparation
of pleadings binder, and to discussion of
additional affidavil evidence 1o tie Fox and
Susan into the malleriorder.

200

$1.000.00
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Date: May 11, 2017

14-0¢ct-19

CMAS

to ali calls with BDO reps, emails with
BDO, calls and emails wilh commercial list
clerk, RB and chient, to review and
revisions to Mike T Oclober 15 alfidavit,
compilalion of exhibits, preparation of CL.P
and outline of claim (4:00 - 8:00 p.m.); to
amend claim (8:00 to 10:00 p.m.); to
finalization of claim and finaf amendment
of Mike T affidavil

7.00

$3.500.00

14-0ct-15

CMAS

To organization of file materials and
motning prep for application.

2.00

$1,000.00

14-0¢ct-15

CMAS

To finalization of affidavit of October 15 (to
emails and review of US lawyer opinion
and inclusion as exhibit) to meeting with
chent to sign, lo all emails wilh all parties
and clerk, to calculation of copies for
parties and instruclions o coordinate for
filing, regisiration and service, to update
pleadings binder and separate binder for
Juslice, to review of to do list and
confinmation that al! s complete. To calls
with RB, clerk and client.

5.00

$2,500.00

15-Oct-15

CMAS

to preparation of claim and affidavit for
execution and filing, to organzation of new
materials on file and lo update pleading
_binder for application

2.00

$1,000.00

15-0ct-15

CMAS

To preparation of all materials for fiing, lo
amendments to pleadings binder for
justice, to ali calls and emails with counsel,
800, and client prior to court application,
to preparalion of oral submissions and
annotalion of exhibits for court application,
To allendance for applicalion, to de-
briefing and strategic meeting with BDO
and RB and clients, o attendance RB
office to amend order, 10 re-altendance al
chambers to have order signed, and fo
debriefing valh client,

12.00

$6,000.00

16-0ct-15

CMAS

10 all calls and emails wilh BDO, BP and
client re: filed order and execution by
receiver, disclosure to counsel for Base,
proposed 1p.m. meeling with Arnoid and
US borrower. To draft statement of the
claim, to preparation of list of persons to
service receivership, and the 2 separate
claims. To amending the SOC to reflect
defendant corporale name change, lo dralt
email lo Phil Lalonde, and {o file
organization afler chambers and update

pleadings binder vith Order elc.

8.00

$4,000.00
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16-Oct-15 CMAS toqunFer calls with client and RB 0.30 $150.00
19-Oct-15 CMAS To call with Roberl Smyth - senvice, 0.50 $250.00
history, elc.

19-Oct-15 CMAS | to call with RB in relation to updale on 200 $1.000.00
information, meeting with Comptois re; his
additional investor assignmenls, and call
with MT for update

18.0cl-15 admn prep lellers for service, assist wilh service | 1.00 $90.00
prep
20-0ct-15 CMAS | To call with Joe Regeveen {counsel for 050 | $250.00
other group of investors)
21-0cl-15 admn Creale CLPs, to all calls to land illes, 5.00 $450.00
stralhmore tax office, process server,
preparalion of documents to LTQ, parsonal
attendance to Calgary Court Cantre fo
mesl process server, to Copy repro to

| organize documents, assist cmas at court-
ML

21-0ct-15 admn email direclion from cmas to email counse! | 0.30 $27.00
{code hunler) send 3 emails enclosing
courlasy capies

21-0ct-15 atmn pulled title and mortgage Irom SPIN; 0.40 $36.00
scanned and emailed Affidavil of Service
1o counsel-ce

13-0¢l-15 admn fomat leller and scanned to counsel-ce 0.20 $18.00

14-0ct-15 admn filing cotrespondence; crealing sub- 0.70 $63.00
folders: creating pleadings binder; scanned
and emailed affidavits-cc

15-0ct-15 admn filing corcespondence; updating binders-cc | 0.30 $27.00

21-0ct-15 admn fiing comespondence; updating -c¢ 0.30 $21.00
16-Oct-15 admn filing correspondence-ct 0.10 $9.00
19-Oct-15 admn preparation of documents for service -cc 1.50 $135.00
19.0¢ct-15 admn | emailed Smyth filed documents; filing 0.30 $27.00
comespondence-co
"20-0ct-15 admn | sent filed couri documents to Roggeveen | 0.40 $36.00
and Comtois -c¢

20-0ct-15 admn emailed filed undertaking to all parlies-cc | 0.20 $18.00
21-0¢t-15 CMAS | To call with code hunter counsel to bring 2.00 $1,000.00
them up to speed and understand their
position and prior court proceedings. To
. 1 review of their malerials } ]
23-0ct15 CMAS ™| Vo calis vith client and appraiserandlo | 2.00 $1.000.00

calls with Resch and his son. To emails
wilh 8DO on appraisal re: Strathmore
propedy

26-0¢t-15 CMAS | update email and service of claims 0.10 $50.00
26-Oct-15 CMAS | emails with client and BDO on examination | 0.20 $100.00
of Arnold B.




DISBURSEMENTS UP TO AND INCLUDING OCTOBER 15, 2015

Up to and including October 15,

GSTon
TAXABLE Disbursements $103.38
Prime Investigalive Group $1,388.60
Court Runner $148.50 Taxable

Disbursements $10,571.73
CopyRepro $357.70 Non-Taxable $9,018.30
File Opening Fee §50.00 $19,693.41
Corporate Searches §27.52
Process Server $95.24

$2,067.56

NON-Taxable
Brleson LLP ($7,000 USD on Jun 30, 2015) $8,742.30
*{LTO Search) CCT $10.00
*{LTO Search) Registered Morigage $10.00
*{LTO Search) Mortgage $10.00
LTO-Registrations Registration of CLP $30.00
LTO-Registrations Reg CLP on other properlies $105.00
Clerk of the Court Clerk's Notes Ordered $11.00
The Government of Alberta Filing Fees / Claims $100.00

(x2), Application

§9,018.30
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Rervter; ROCCO TENRIGHD
Pucheter: ROCCO YERNIGND
Puchaser Accound:  S248503688
Ooentoe (02 901310 oy

Furdng Sowrse:  Pepar

FAY TO THE oaneamc');m ***BURLESON LLP**

**Seven thousand dollars and no cents***

Payen Address:

Morrg:

WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A. NOTICE TO PURCHASER-IF RS INSTRUMENT {5 LOST,

1090 € quNa'rEu SYOLEN OR DESTROYED, YOU MAY REQUEST CANCELIATION
CTOTTSDALE, AY 95202 . AND TR IASUANCE. A3 A CONGITION TO CANCELLATION AND
FOR mmesuu(«lw)muz REISSUANCE, WELLS FARQC 4 COMPANY MAY BMPOSE A

FEE AND REQUNRE AN WHRWOTY AGRGEMENT ANO BUNG.

Purchaser Copy

m_“m' - __,_",';*;"’ T U [ CASHIER'SCHECK
3 mm _— ‘ < : eeme -’ ' o , :
wto- 21001310 T oI

PAY TO THE ORDER os' f" **BURLESON LLP"‘*

“*Seven thousand dol!ars ana' no cents“* A LR

.

Payen Addmy.
Haemo.

WELLS PARGO BMIK, NA.-

10750 & DYNAANTS B,

SCOTTEOALE, AL om :
FOR INCUIRIES CALL (480) 39‘41?2 !

SERIAL #: 7642100877
ACCOUNTS: 4861.511400

June 30, 2015

**$7,000.00**

VOD T OVERUI S 7.000.00

NON-NEGOTIABLE

D Jufw'éd.}bﬁi

*§7,000.00™

CONTRILLER

m ambet s Mrwe s mAla b wote w .. U DESPRUOI PRI TPURUIURIORENIR PSS OOP SRR TP AP PP R

1?54 2300977 o } 25000 2,85 LBLE 5L 4L0OW

This Is Exhlbt&' roferred to In the Affidavit of
«

Paul Schisnker
Notary Pubtic

Maricopa County, Arizona
My Comm. Explres 05-16-19

" 7542100077 -

H T

" VDDIFOVERUSS 700000 '

Hlibind Kergper

e BN macaste an 8eed Lol



USD to CAD Rates on 6/30/20135 - Exchange Rates Page T of 2
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{/converter.aspx)

EXCHANGE RATES {) ¢+ US DOLLAR RATES FOR 6/30/2075 (PHISTORICALRATESAASUSDG 3020051 7 CANADIAN BOLLAR

Be rewarded for your good driving record, —
Find out how you can save on car insurance. }q k) i
TD Insurance Decreasing Deductible o

Condibeons apply

US Dollars (USD) to Canadian Dollars (CAD) exchange rate for June 30, 2015

Convert To Result
1USD CAD 1.2489 CAD
100 USD CAD 124.89 CAD
10,000 USD CAD 12,489.20 CAD
1,000,000 USD CAD 1,248,920.00 CAD
CAD to USD Rates on 6/30/2015 - (/Rate/CAD/USD/6-30-2015) ﬂ; 8, 7 Lf ‘:{ ' Bk)

2018 COROLLALECVT

er oy 1A Froas & @ quickbooks.
$55= 0% ;*,c‘}??‘f‘?“ q BACKING YOU'

With $1699 down payment with 5500
lease assist applied. Includes Freight

and Fees. Tanes (!x'lbl. TELL ME B'ack Friday Sa Ie

MORE

Up to 70% off ”

f : TOYOQOTATHON
| 2018 COROLLA LE CVT XLE Phg Shown !
o i
Currency Converter
Amount |
1
From: I
US Dollar (USD) \ 4
] 1

hups:/fexchange-rates.org/Rate/USD/CAD/6-30-20135 11/15/2018
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Sworn before me this ______ s S Experienced Litigation Counsel

day of . -'_’LL’ =M ] D';.‘."_X
) , e 1910, 717 - 7th Avenue SW
FTEETtin PO S ) et e Calgary, AB T2P 023
T (403) 930-4100
SUIANNA AP T www.BillingtonBarristers.com
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inz th P 3 -
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Statement No. 3673

Mike Terrigno

c/o Chris Souster

Riverside Law Office

4108 Montgomery View NW
Calgary, AB T3B 0L9

15047-001 RNB: Base Mortgage & Investments Ltd. and Base Finance Ltd.

Professional Fees Hours Amount

08/10/2015 RNB Receipt of material from client and 0.80 520.00
review of same.

08/10/2015 RNB Telephone call to Client; telephone call 1.30 845.00

to Chris Souster regarding result of
mortgage disclosure.

09/10/2015 RNB Meeting with Mike Terrigno and 2.50 1.625.00
Christopher Souster; e-mails to same
and review of file materials.

09/10/2015 AN Review of Mike Terrigno file 2.00 300.00

10/10/2015 RNB E-mail correspondence with Sarah 0.40 260.00
Hawco re: conflict check.

12/10/2015 RNB E-mail correspondence with Mike 2.80 1,820.00
Terrigno and Chris Souster re; draft
order and BDO.

12/10/2015 AN  Title search on each of the properties 2.00 300.00
and client follow-up

13/10/2015 RNB Drafling of receivership order: review of 7.00 4,550.00

requested title searches; review of
materials; review of correspondence
from Phil Lalonde; reporting letter to
Christopher Souster; conference call
with Mike Terrigno and Christopher
Souster; review of draft pleadings.

13/10/2015 AN Comparing our Order drafted vs. the 2.00 300.00
template Order for the Juslice to see



14/10/2015 RNB

14/10/2015 AN

15/10/2015 RNB

15/10/2015 AN

Richard N. Billington, Q.C.
Alyx Nanji

Dishursements

13/10/2015

13/10/2015

13/10/2015

13102015

13/10/2015

13/10/2015

16/10/2015

the differences via highlight.

Telephone conference with Mike 0.50
Terrigno and Christopher Souster,

Attend at 2pm telephone meeting 1.00
Preparation for Court; revision of Order; 5.60
attendance at Court to obtain Ex Parte
receivership order, meetings, filing and

service of same.

Review of cases and draff of Order 4.50

Rate Summary

20.90 hours
11.50 hours

Total hours: 32.40

Photocopies

Searches

Searches - Tax Exempt*
Searches - Tax Exempt*
Searches

Searches - Tax Exempt*
Searches

Printing/Scanning Charges

Sub-total Fees:

GST on Fees:

325.00

160.00
3,640.00

675.00

15,310.00

765.50

13,585.00
1,725.00

Amount
6.50

25.72

48.50

33.00

12.86

16.50

38.58

160.80

Page: 2



Sub-total Disbursements:

GST on Disbursements:

Total Tax

Total Fees, Disbursements & GST
Previous Unpaid Balance

Total Payments:

Balance Due Now

Billington Barristers

- 3
Per: W

Richard N. Billington Q.C.

TO PAY BY VISAIMASTERCARD
PLEASE CONTACT MONIQUE EFONOFF

Meofonofi@BillingtonBarristers.comn
403.930-4108

343.46

12.22
777.72

16,431.18
0.00
5,000.00

11,431.18

“tax-exempt
GST No. 859843740RT0001
E.&O.E.
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